STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On March 25, 1991, the petitioner, Marvin Lewis Jerelds, was charged by information with delivery of cocaine (Count I) and possession of cocaine (Count II). A jury found Jerelds guilty on both counts (R233-234). On September 5, 1991, the trial court adjudicated Jerelds guilty and sentenced him to concurrent sevenyear sentences as a habitual offender. On appeal, the conviction was affirmed by the district court (Appendix A). Jerelds filed notice on August 31, 1992, to invoke this court's discretionary jurisdiction (Appendix B).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Agents Parsell, Guy, and Hanton drove an unmarked car around to local street corners attempting to puchase cocaine. They saw Jerelds, whom they did not know, who they stated was not the target of any narcotics investigation, and who did not signal the car in any way. The agents drove up to Jerelds and asked whether he knew Lisa and her whereabouts. (Lisa is a local drug user.) There is contradictory testimony about whether the agents first offered Jerelds a ride to his housing project and then mentioned drugs after they arrived, or asked about drugs first and were joined by Jerelds as guide. It is agreed that the agents prevailed upon Jerelds to buy \$20 worth of crack cocaine from some dealers standing around. Jerelds got the crack from these dealers, turned it over to the agents, and got \$20, which he in turn gave the dealers. The dealers immediately ran off, and the agents made no effort to apprehend them.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the instant case, Jerelds v. State, 17 F.L.W. (Fla. 5th DCA, Aug. 7, 1992), is in direct conflict with the decisions of the Florida Supreme Court in State v. Hunter, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Cruz v. State</u>, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), and with the decisions of the Second District Court of Appeal in <u>Beattie v. State</u>, 595 So.2d 249 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992), and <u>Bowser v. State</u>, 555 So.2d 879 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). The <u>Jerelds</u> opinion makes correct statements of the law, but misinterprets and misapplies them, generating confusion and disharmony.

<u>ARGUMENT</u>

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>JERELDS V. STATE</u>, 17 F.L.W. 1834 (FLA. 5TH DCA AUG. 7, 1992), CONFLICTS EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the instant case is in direct conflict with the decisions of the Florida Supreme Court in <u>State v. Hunter</u>, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991), and <u>Cruz v. State</u>, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla.) <u>cert. denied</u>, 473 U.S. 905, 105 S.Ct. 3527, 87 L.Ed.2d 652 (1985), and with the decisions of the Second District Court of Appeal in <u>Beattie v. State</u>, 595 So.2d 249 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992), and <u>Bowser v. State</u>, 555 So.2d 879 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). The <u>Jerelds</u> opinion makes correct statements of law but misapplies them, generating confusion and disharmony.

In <u>Cruz</u> this court elaborated the two levels of analysis in which a court must engage when deciding an entrapment issue. These are first the threshold question of whether police conduct fell below certain standards, or the "objective" test, with its twopronged requirement of interruption of specific ongoing criminal activity by a means reasonably tailored to apprehend those involved in it; and then the question of a person's proclivity to commit the particular crime, as set out in section 777.201, Florida Statutes (1989), which is the "subjective" test. 465 So.2d at 4521.

In <u>Hunter</u> the principle of objective entrapment was confirmed. 586 So.2d at 322. With its next entrapment case, <u>Herrera v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 275 (Fla. 1992), this court did not face the question of

whether entrapment existed--under either objective or subjective test--but of whether the entrapment statute properly defines the subjective test as an affirmative defense.

Nothing in this chronological analysis indicates any changes in Florida's judicial position on entrapment. The district court, in its <u>Jerelds</u> opinion, purports to rely upon <u>Hunter</u> to affirm Jerelds's conviction for "specific ongoing criminal activity." The court implies that it "focuses solely on police conduct" to arrive at its decision, and does not address Jerelds's own disposition.

But stating a proposition of law and using it are two different things. The instant facts do not indicate any reason whatever to believe that Jerelds was engaged in ongoing criminal activity, or that any such activity was interrupted. The means used by the police cannot, by definition, be "reasonably tailored" to attack targeted activity, where no such activity is shown. What the court's opinion did was to equate improper police conduct with outrageous police conduct, find none, and affirm Jerelds's conviction.

It is true that this case does not offer a textbook illustration of entrapment. Examples of "good" entrapment cases are <u>Beattie v. State</u>, 595 So.2d 249 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992), and <u>Bowser v. State</u>, 555 So.2d 879 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989), both decided for the defendant on an objective test analysis. It is apparent that Jerelds's virtue may be easier to test than one would wish. Nevertheless, as far as Jerelds himself is concerned, the police manufactured the crime. Their proper target was the folks from

whom the purchase was made, not Jerelds.

The district court stated the rule correctly but misapplied it in such a way as to subvert this court's decisions on entrapment.

CONCLUSION

BASED UPON the reasons expressed above, the petitioner respectfully requests that this honorable court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and reverse the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal herein.