IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MARVIN LOUIS JERELDS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 80,420

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF A DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ANTHONY J. GOLDEN
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #162172
210 N. Palmetto Ave.
Suite 447
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

#

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondent accepts Petitioner's Statement of the Case.

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On the night of March 6, 1991, undercover drug agents from the Orange County Sheriff's Office were driving around in an unmarked car attempting to buy narcotics on local street corners in Orlando. They asked Petitioner if he knew where they could buy twenty dollars worth of crack cocaine. Petitioner said that he did and would take them there. He got into the car and directed the agents to the Piper Ridge apartment complex. There, he got out, approached two or three other black males and returned with a bag of suspected crack cocaine. An agent then gave Petitioner twenty dollars and Petitioner gave it to one of the other black males. Petitioner was subsequently arrested.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the case sub judice is not in conflict with any of the decisions cited by Petitioner. Asking a citizen if he knows where to find crack cocaine is not the type of police activity condemned in this Court's Cruz and Hunter decisions.

Petitioner was not entrapped. He was asked by the undercover agents to get some cocaine for them and he did. He could have refused, but he did not. He showed no hesitation in becoming involved in a drug transaction.

The facts that he was a crack cocaine addict and that he had not profited from the cocaine sale were apparently taken into account by the trial judge in sentencing him to the bottom of the recommended range of the sentencing guidelines despite his habitual offender status.

This is not an appropriate vehicle for this Court to clarify the case law on objective entrapment in Florida.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ΙN THE CASE JUDICE IS NOT IN DIRECT CONFLICT DECISIONS OF THIS COURT THOSE OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

Under Article V, Section 3(b)(3), of the Florida Constitution and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(4), this Court may review any decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law. In Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986), this Court held that the conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision. Department of HRS v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1986), this Court said that inferential or implied conflict no longer may serve as the basis iurisdiction. In Department of Revenue v. Johnston, 442 So.2d 950 (Fla. 1983), this Court initially accepted jurisdiction, but discharged jurisdiction because the case was distinguishable on its facts from those cited as being in conflict with it. Given these bases for determining jurisdiction based on conflict, it cannot be said that the opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the case sub judice is in express and direct conflict with State v. Hunter, 586 So.2d 319 (Fla. 1991); Cruz v. State, 465 So.2d 516 (Fla. 1985); Beattie v. State, 595 So.2d 249 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992) or Bowser v. State, 555 So.2d 879 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989), cited by Petitioner.

In the case sub judice, the Fifth District Court simply ruled:

...that a police officer asking a citizen where the police officer could find some cocaine is not the type of police activity which entitles a defendant to the defense of objective entrapment under <a href="Cruz">Cruz</a> and Hunter. (Appendix I, p.2).

None of the cases cited by Petitioner are on all fours factually or legally with the instant case. In the <u>Hunter</u> case, a defendant, Ron Diamond, tried to get his drug trafficking sentence reduced by providing substantial assistance in arresting others. He contacted a neighbor named Conklin about assisting him in obtaining drugs. Conklin had no prior criminal record. Diamond pestered Conklin with almost daily telephone calls until Conklin finally agreed to help him find some drugs. In <u>Cruz</u>, the police used an officer posing as an inebriated drunk with \$150 hanging out of his pocket to entice Cruz to steal the money.

Nothing like that occurred in the instant case. There was no substantial assistance agreement or quick money. Petitioner did not have to be coerced into becoming involved in the cocaine transaction. The police were attempting to interrupt a specific ongoing criminal activity, the street corner sales of crack cocaine. They used a means reasonably tailored to apprehend those involved in the street corner sales, asking people loitering on street corners where they could purchase some crack cocaine. This case simply does not involve the level of coercive police behavior designed to dupe an innocent citizen into Participating in illegal activity which was involved in Hunter and Cruz.

In <u>Beattie</u>, law enforcement agencies had placed an ad in a local Collier County shopping publication advertising child pornography. When Beattie purchased a video from the police, he was arrested. The Second District found that he had been objectively entrapped. There was no known child pornography in the Collier County area at the time and the police did not know Mr. Beattie. Clearly, nothing near that type of outrageous police conduct could be said to have occurred in the instant case.

In <u>Bowser</u>, undercover police officers picked up a hitchhiker who had just been to the doctor with a broken arm and who had been given a prescription for Tylenol III (Codeine). They gave the defendant the money to fill the prescription, bought him some beer and then offered him three dollars for six of the pills. Again, nothing anywhere near this outrageous could be said to have occurred in the instant case.

While it is true that the law on objective entrapment in Florida needs some clarification, this case is not the appropriate vehicle for it. Counsel for Petitioner admits that his client's virtue was "easier to test than one would wish." Petitioner got on the witness stand and admitted his willing participation in this venture. This Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case.

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, Respondent would submit that the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the case sub judice is not in direct conflict with any of the cases cited by Petitioner and this Court should decline to accept jurisdiction.